
As a young boy Setanta was told many stories about his uncle King Conor Mac Nessa, 
his Kingdom at Emhain Macha and the famous Macra. The Macra was set up by King 
Conor Mac Nessa and was training school for young boys to become future knights 
and leaders of the king’s army. The boys were trained everyday to use weapons, they 
practised wrestling and challenged each other to contests and games especially 
Hurling as this was regarded as a game of great skill and speed. 

Setanta longed to become a member of the Macra and at aged nine set out with 
determination from his home on the Cooley Mountains for Emhain Macha. On his back 
he carried a bag of deerskin and in his hand he carried items to shorten his journey, a 
hurley said to be made out of brass, a sliotar made out of silver, a spear and a javelin. 
Along the journey he would strike the sliotar with the hurl as hard as he could then 
throw the hurl, then the spear and then the javelin into the air after the sliotar and run 
to catch all four in succession without letting them hitting the ground.

As Setanta arrived at Emhain Macha the boys of the Macra were playing hurling as King 
Conor looked on. Setanta rushed in uninvited to play, he beat every boy to the sliotar 
and dribbled, pucked and carried it on his hurl the length of the playing pitch and 
drove it unstoppably into the goal. In a fit of anger at the intrusion the boys charged at 
Setanta with their hurleys but he warded them all off, single handedly! 

The king, not recognising his young nephew, intervened and demanded to know 
who Setanta was and what he was playing at? Setanta told his uncle who he was. King 
Conor was delighted and commented that if Setanta was half as good a warrior as 
he was a hurler then he would be a rare catch! Setanta’s dream came true when King 
Conor invited him to become a member of The Macra. 

Shortly after joining the Macra Setanta was playing hurling when King Conor was 
passing on his way to a feast at the house of his blacksmith Culann. He stopped to 
look at the boys playing and noticed that it was two teams playing as normal except 
that Setanta was playing on his own against the two teams. As a reward Conor invited 
Setanta to the feast, however Setanta explained that he couldn’t leave just yet as the 
game wasn’t finished. It was agreed that Setanta  would follow Conor to Culann’s 
house after the game. 

After the match Setanta set off for Culann’s fort with his hurl and sliotar to keep him 
amused on the journey. As he arrived at Culann’s fort he heard a great growl and saw a 
slavering giant beast coming towards him. When King Conor arrived at Culann’s fort he 
had forgotten about his invitation to Setanta and Culann released his ferocious hound 
to protect the fort. With a second thought and with all his speed and accuracy Setanta 
hurled his sliotar into the hound’s gaping mouth and killed him instantly. Inside the 
feast was interrupted by a ferocious howling, in horror King Conor remembered Setanta 
and believed him to be torn to shreds by the mighty hound of Culann. King Conor and 
Culann rushed outside and were amazed to see Setanta alive and the hound dead. 

King Conor was delighted to see his nephew alive and well however Culann was upset 
that his mighty watchdog was dead. Seeing Culann’s distress at the loss of his hound 
Setanta offered Culann a deal. If Culann found another young dog Setanta would train 
the dog to be as magnificent as the one he had killed. In the meantime Setanta himself 
would defend Culann’s forth and be Culann’s watchdog. 

Culann accepted this offer Setanta was given the new name of Cú Chulainn, the 
hound (cú) of Culann. Eventually Setanta completed his promise to Culann but was 
known as Cú Chulainn until the day he died. 

Cú Chulainn, The Iron 
Age and Hurling 
The legend of Cú Chulainn 
is one of many interrelating 
stories that make up The 
Táin. The Táin was committed 
to written word in the early 
medieval 11th Century Book of 
the Dun Cow, the 12th Century 
Book of Leinster and the 14th 
century Book of Lecan. Despite 
this historians, folklorists and 
archaeologists believe that 
the Táin is set is The Irish Iron 
Age. The Irish Iron Age dates 
from 500BC to 500AD and is 
characterised by the use of 
Iron for weapons and tools. The 
people who lived in Ireland at 
the time were known as the 
Celts and lived a farming clan-
based lifestyle. Not only has 
the Táin provided us with one 
of Ireland’s greatest heroes and 
hurler but also provides us with 
the evidence to date hurling to 
the Irish Iron Age. 

12  History of Croke Park – Teacher’s Notes

Today Croke Park is home and headquarters to the Gaelic Athletic Association. Each 
year thousands of GAA fans follow their team to Croke Park, however few are aware 
that the history of the stadium dates back to 1864 and that the stadium has been 
known by five different names. 

On April 16th 1864 a plot of land was leased to Mr. Maurice Butterley and became 
known as ‘Butterley’s Field’. In 1894 a company called the City and Suburban 
Racecourse and Amusements Grounds Ltd. purchased Butterley’s Field and began 
leasing it out for sports meetings, whippet racing and gaelic games. Butterley’s Field 
then became known as the City and Suburban Racecourse. 

By 1908 the City and Suburban Racecourse was up for sale and on December 17th 
Frank Brazil Dineen bought the grounds for £3,250. Frank was a former President of the 
GAA and intended that in time the GAA would purchase the grounds from him. The 
GAA had made a profit of £1,273 in 1907 and felt that to buy the grounds would put the 
Association severely in debt. Once purchased Frank set about making changes to the 
grounds, the pitch was re-laid, terracing was erected and the name was changed to 
Jones Road Sports Ground. 

In 1913 the GAA organised a Croke Memorial Tournament to raise funds for a 
monument to the GAA’s first patron, Archbishop Thomas Croke. The final of this 
tournament was played on March 4th 1913 between Kerry and Louth in Croke Park in 
front of a then record attendance of 26,000. The game ended in a draw and the replay 
was set for June 29th. For the replay the gates were closed after 32,000 spectators had 
been admitted but thousands more swarmed in over the walls. The two teams were 
level at half-time but Kerry eventually defeated Louth 2-4 to 0-5. 

All attendance records for a GAA match were smashed and the GAA had made £2,365 
profit. The tournament was a huge success and the GAA could now afford to erect a 
monument in Croke’s memory and also purchase a new central GAA sports ground. 
Later that year the GAA purchased Jones Road Sports Ground and re-named it Croke 
Memorial Park. The name Croke Memorial Park was quickly shortened to Croke Park 
and the stadium became the GAA’s national grounds and administrative headquarters. 

Since 1913 Croke Park has undergone significant changes. A new terrace area at the 
northern end of the ground was created in 1917 using the rubble from O’Connell Street 
in Dublin, which had been destroyed during the 1916 Rising. This terrace became known 
as Hill 16. In 1924 a new stand was built along the Jones Road side of the stadium and 
named the Hogan Stand, in honour of Michael Hogan from Tipperary who had been 
shot during Bloody Sunday 1920. A new Cusack Stand was completed in 1938. At the 
Canal End new terracing was built in 1949, the Nally Stand was built in 1952 and the ‘old’ 
Hogan Stand was replaced in 1959. Thereafter development of the stadium slowed.

In the 1980’s a grand plan for the entire redevelopment of Croke Park was announced. 
This redevelopment was staged in four phases, a phase for each stand, starting in 1993 
with a new Cusack Stand and culminating in 2005 with a new Hill 16. The redevelopment 
was completed in just 12 years with no disruptions to any All-Ireland finals. 

Today Croke Park is one of the largest stadiums in Europe and is truly one of the most 
historic stadiums in the world. 

Curriclum Links
History. Strand – Local Studies. Strand Unit – Games and Pastimes in the Past.

History. Strand – Local Studies. Strand Unit – Buildings, Sites or Ruins in My Locality.

History of Croke Park 

Archbishop Croke

What’s in a name? 
During its long history GAA 
headquarters has been known by 
many different names: Butterley’s 
Field, The City and Suburban 
Racecourse, Jones Road Sports 
Ground, Croke Memorial Park 
and finally Croke Park. Once the 
GAA purchased the stadium in 
1913 it was decided to name it in 
honour of Archbishop Thomas 
William Croke of Cashel. In 1884 
Archbishop Croke was invited 
to become the first patron 
of the GAA, an invitation he 
happily accepted. Archbishop 
Croke supported the GAA and 
its games until his death, often 
providing prizes for competitions.

At the GAA Museum 
Experience a Croke Park behind-
the-scenes guided tour. 

Follow the Stadium’s history on 
the Croke Park Timeline exhibition.




